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Edison Opto Corporation 

2024 Business Report 

Over the past year, we faced a volatile international political and economic landscape. The 

conflict between Russia and Ukraine persisted, the Israel‐Palestine conflict intensified, and the 

U.S.‐China trade war continued. These complex geopolitical situations have affected the 

operations and deployment of industries. In response to changes in the macro environment 

and to drive Company growth, the Group has continued to develop lighting and automotive 

modules, while transforming toward the downstream lighting and automotive end‐product 

markets. We have reduced orders for low gross margin products and increased the sales 

proportion of high gross margin products. In 2024, the Group's consolidated revenue reached 

NT$2.559 billion. Due to an increase in shipments of automotive end‐products compared to the 

previous year, consolidated revenue increased by 29% year over year. The Group continued to 

invest in equipment and optimize production lines, resulting in higher production costs. 

However, through changes in the product sales mix and cost‐saving measures, the gross profit 

margin remained at approximately 25%. In addition, as costs for overseas exhibitions and 

business trips increased, along with higher R&D and development expenses for new products, 

operating expenses rose by 5.5% compared to the previous period. Since the growth rate of 

operating expenses was lower than that of revenue, and due to the depreciation trend of the 

New Taiwan Dollar and Renminbi against the U.S. Dollar during the period, foreign exchange 

gains increased compared to the previous period. As a result, both operating profit and net 

profit after tax grew compared to the previous year. 

Given the intense competition in the LED industry, the Group continues to expand into high‐end 

commercial  lighting,  automotive  lighting,  smart  lighting,  and  infrared  sectors,  establishing  a 

differentiated  business  model  distinct  from  other  competitors.  The  Group  swiftly  adjusts 

according to market changes to avoid price‐cutting competition in red ocean markets, striving to 

maximize  the  interests  of  all  shareholders.  The  following  is  a  summary of  the  2024 Business 

Report and the 2025 Business Plan: 

I. 2024 Consolidated Business Report 

(I) Results of implementation of the business plan 

1. Regarding the consolidated operating revenue, our consolidated net operating

revenue in 2024 was NT$2,558,790 thousand, an increase of NT$567,729 thousand

from NT$1,991,061 thousand in 2023.

2. Regarding the consolidated net after‐tax profit, our consolidated net operating

profit in 2024 was NT$143,279 thousand, an increase of NT$95,486 thousand from

the consolidated net operating profit of NT$47,793 thousand in 2023.

3. Regarding the consolidated net after‐tax profit, our consolidated net after‐tax

profit (including non‐controlling interests) in 2024 was $152,352 thousand, an

【Annex 1】 
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increase of $107,850 thousand from the consolidated net after‐tax profit of 

$44,502 thousand in 2023. 

(II) Implementation of budget 

We have not published any financial forecast for 2024, so no disclosure of any 

information of such implementation is required. 

(III) Analysis of financial revenue and expenditure and profitability (consolidated 

companies) 

Item  2024  2023 

Capital 

structure 

Liabilities to assets ratio (%)  23.94  23.60

Long‐term funds to property, plant and 

equipment ratio (%) 
217.73  193.07

Profitability 

Return on assets (%)  3.98  1.43

Return on equity (%)  4.96  1.55

As a percentage of 

paid‐in capital (%) 

Net operating 

profit 

      9.98        3.33

Net pre‐tax profit  12.13  3.44

Net profit margin (%)  5.95  2.24

Earnings per share (NT$)  1.00  0.35

(IV) Research and development 

The consolidated R&D expenses of the Company in 2024 amounted to NT$146,068 

thousand, representing an increase of NT$16,294 thousand compared to 2023. This 

was mainly due to continued investment in product development for automotive 

lighting and new products. Overall, R&D expenses accounted for more than 5% of 

consolidated revenue. The Company focuses on the R&D of products in the lighting and 

automotive sectors, as well as improvements in packaging technology. Our 

professional R&D team has accumulated extensive technical experience and obtained 

numerous patents both domestically and internationally, ranging from components to 

finished products. We continue to develop products that meet market demands and 

future trends, including smart lighting and intelligent control systems, long‐lasting 

energy‐saving streetlight products, and automotive‐grade LED components, modules, 

and finished products. 

II. Summary of the 2025 Business Plan

As LED lighting applications continue to expand and more competitors enter the market, 

the Company has transitioned from offering LED components to providing module and 

end‐product services driven by customer needs. We are actively expanding into additional 

applications such as horticultural lighting, medical lighting, smart lighting, commercial 

lighting, and automotive lighting. According to a TrendForce report, in 2024, lighting 
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market demand was driven by the retirement of fixtures reaching the end of their service 

life, resulting in considerable demand for secondary replacements. The output value of the 

LED lighting market grew by 4% to US$60.9 billion. Looking ahead to 2025, secondary 

replacement demand has begun to follow the initial replacement cycle and is becoming a 

key driving force in the LED lighting market. By 2028, approximately 78% of LED lighting 

demand is expected to come from secondary replacements. Additionally, according to the 

Industrial Technology Research Institute (ITRI), the global automotive lighting market is 

projected to grow from US$34.8 billion in 2024 to US$36.4 billion in 2025, representing a 

5% year‐over‐year increase. The Company has gradually expanded its presence in the 

automotive LED lighting sector to avoid markets plagued by excessive price competition. 

III. Our future development strategy

Looking ahead to 2025, the global manufacturing sector is expected to remain polarized. 

While demand for advanced semiconductor processes and servers remains strong, the 

recovery in traditional industries is limited. Recent interest rate cuts by major central 

banks, coupled with declines in international oil and other commodity prices, have led to 

easing inflation across countries, which is favorable for driving up demand. In addition, 

global trade continues to expand, and the National Development Council forecasts that 

the global economy is expected to grow steadily in 2025. At this stage, the Company 

continues to prioritize operational agility, increasing investment in Taiwan while advancing 

product transformation, improving internal processes and efficiency, strengthening R&D 

capabilities and core technologies, and moving toward the goal of becoming an 

international professional optoelectronics manufacturing service provider. 

IV. Effects of external competition, legal environment and overall business environment

Due to intense market competition, the low price market has seriously eroded the profit. When 

the supply and demand do not reach a balance, it will easily lead to overcapacity and a decline in 

profit. In the face of this situation, we will carefully evaluate our investments and continue to 

launch new products, reduce production costs, improve product quality, shorten delivery times for 

customers and develop new areas of application including smart applications, in order to achieve 

substantial business growth. In addition, with the rise of global environmental awareness and 

changes in laws and regulations, we will strive to improve efficiency and recycle resources, and keep 

an eye on domestic and international policies and legal changes and propose timely 

countermeasures in order to minimize the adverse effects of the external competitive and 

regulatory environment on us. 

We are appreciative of the support from all shareholders during the past year. Despite intense 

market competition and all kinds of challenges, our management team will focus on R&D and 

maximizing the interests of shareholders, and will remain committed to the missions of improving 

corporate governance and increasing social responsibility 

Chairperson：Jason Wu                Manager：Jason Wu Account Officer：XI‐Quan Hu 
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  Edison Opto Corporation 
Audit Committee’s Report 

 

The Board of Directors has prepared the 2024 Business Report, financial 

statements and earnings distribution proposal, where the financial 

statements have been audited by CPAs Shu-Chih Yang and Bei-Chi Chen from 

KPMG Taiwan with the Auditor’s Report issued. The above report, statements 

and proposal have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and found to be in 

conformity. We hereby present the above in accordance with Article 14-4 of 

the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act for your 

scrutiny. 

 

To The 2025 Regular Shareholders’ Meeting of Edison Opto Corporation 

 
 
 

 
Audit Committee  
Convener: Wen-Chao Wang 

                                     
 
 
 
 

 
                                    
February 26, 2025 

 
  

【Annex 2】 
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Edison Opto Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Edison Opto Corporation(“ the Company” ), which comprise the 
balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Edison Opto Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Norm
of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.The key auditor matters that, in our professional judgment, should be communicated are as
follows:

Description of key audit matter:

1. Impairment evaluation of accounts receivable

Please refer to Note 4(f) “ Financial instruments” , Note 5(a) “ Significant accounting assumptions and
judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty”, and Note 6(d) “Notes and accounts receivable”.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the accounts receivable accounted for 4% of the total assets are
material to the financial statements. In addition, the provision of bad debt allowance is a subject to the
management’s judgment. Therefore, it has been identified as a key audit matter.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: 

•Assess the impairment of accounts receivable and whether the impairment has been modified by policy.

•Examine the aging analysis table, analyze the reason of overdue collection and the situation of subsequent
collection.

•Evaluate the adequacy of impairment on the financial report date.

2. Revenue recognition

Please refer to Note 4(m) Revenue from contracts with customers, and Note 6(t) “Revenue”.

Description of key audit matter:

The major business activities of Edison Opto Corporation are manufacturing, selling, research and
development of LED components, modules and products. Operating Revenue is the main indicator for the
management of Edison Opto Corporation and investor to evaluate the financial and business performance of
Edison Opto Company. Therefore, it has been identified as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included:

• Test the design and implementation of internal controls related with revenue recognition.

• A sample of sales revenue throughout the year is selected, and the external orders, packing lists and
various vouchers are checked to confirm that the operating income is recognized.

• Choose the period between the financial reporting, then examine the recognition of income transactions
and vouchers cover for the appropriate period.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs, IASs, IFRC,
SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Edison Opto Corporation’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Edison Opto Corporation or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Edison Opto
Corporation’s financial reporting process.

21
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Edison Opto Corporation’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Edison Opto Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’  report to the related
disclosures in the  financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Edison Opto Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’  report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are SHU-CHIH YANG and
PEI-CHI CHEN.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 26, 2025

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the  financial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
EDISON OPTO CORPORATION

Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar , Except Earnings Per Share)

2024 2023

Amount % Amount %

4000 Operating revenue (note 6(t) and 7) $ 1,137,174 100 1,043,571 100
5000 Operating costs (note 6(f)(i)(j)(n)(o) and 7) 856,596 75 847,890 81
5900 Gross profit from operations 280,578 25 195,681 19
5910 Unrealized profit (loss) from sales (note 7) (90) - 1,390 -
5950 Gross profit from operations, net 280,488 25 197,071 19

Operating expenses (note 6(i)(j)(n)(o)(r)):
6100 Selling expenses 81,409 7 79,330 8
6200 Administrative expenses 94,711 8 105,702 10
6300 Research and development expenses 36,208 3 29,225 3
6450 Expected credit loss(reversed) (note 6(d)) 74 - (700) -

Total operating expenses 212,402 18 213,557 21
6900 Net operating income (loss) 68,086 7 (16,486) (2)

Non-operating income and expenses (note 6(h)(m)(v) and 7):
7100 Total interest income 3,622 - 3,799 -
7010 Other income 19,390 2 16,767 2
7020 Other gains and losses, net 3,995 - 4,751 -
7050 Finance costs, net (6,038) (1) (9,081) (1)
7070 Share of profit (loss) of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method,

net 56,036 5 50,011 5
Total non-operating income and expenses 77,005 6 66,247 6

7900 Profit from continuing operations before tax 145,091 13 49,761 4
7950 Less: Income tax expenses (note 6(p)) 3,186 - 2,233 -

Profit 141,905 13 47,528 4

8300 Other comprehensive income: 
8310 Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss
8311 Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6(o)) 372 - 63 -

8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (note 6(q))

(418) - (976) -

8349 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

- - - -

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss

(46) - (913) -

8360 Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit or
loss

8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 78,573 7 (25,416) (2)

8399 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified
to profit or loss

- - - -

Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss 78,573 7 (25,416) (2)

8300 Other comprehensive income (loss) 78,527 7 (26,329) (2)

8500 Total comprehensive income $ 220,432 20 21,199 2

Earnings per share (note 6(s))
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 1.00 0.35

9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 0.99 0.35

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
EDISON OPTO CORPORATION

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)

2024 2023
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:

Profit before tax $ 145,091 49,761
Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 28,858 28,653
Amortization expense 46 52
Expected credit loss (reversal) 74 (700)
Net loss (gain) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 333 (362)
Interest expense 6,038 9,081
Interest income (3,622) (3,799)
Share-based payments - 15,840
Share of profit of subsidiaries,associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method (56,036) (50,011)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (482) (2,971)
Gain on disposal of other assets (115) -
Unrealized profit from sales 3,049 2,959
Realized profit on from sales (2,959) (4,349)
Loss (gain) on bond redemption - 3

Total adjustments to reconcile loss (24,816) (5,604)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in current contract assets (2,821) 671
Accounts and notes receivable 40,584 (40,960)
Accounts receivable due from related parties (2,118) 6,405
Other receivable (5,828) (4,494)
Inventories 16,275 14,553
Prepayments 6,163 3,018
Other current assets (9) 19
Increase (decrease) in current contract liabilities (4,994) 250
Accounts and notes payable 555 (541)
Accounts payable to related parties 66,167 7,235
Other payable 12,761 4,292
Increase (decrease) in other payable to related parties 33 -
Other current liabilities 74 2,443
Net defined benefit liability 708 708

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities 127,550 (6,401)
Cash flows from operations 247,825 37,756
Interest received 3,622 3,799
Interest paid (5,545) (5,770)
Income taxes refund (paid) (240) 2,122

Net cash flows from operating activities 245,662 37,907
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - (6,090)
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (91,875) (52,000)
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for using equity method 15,200 -
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost (37,500) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (120) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (10,098) (6,460)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 239 -
Increase(decrease)in refundable deposits (1,034) 1,607
Acquisition of intangible assets (100) (83)
Increase in restricted deposits (43) (35)
Increase in other non-current assets (41,867) -
Increase in prepayments for business facilities (3,592) (3,819)
Dividends received 9,949 17,060

Net cash flows used in investing activities (160,841) (49,820)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:

Increase in short-term loans 310,000 621,815
Decrease in short-term loans (491,185) (504,910)
Proceeds from issuing bonds 297,983 -
Repayments of bonds - (300)
Repayments of long-term debt (134,300) (156,480)
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received 7 (6)
Payment of lease liabilities (3,865) (3,564)
Cash dividends paid (71,055) (40,000)
Treasury shares sold to employees - 18,625

Net cash flows used in financing activities (92,415) (64,820)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 480 2,381
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7,114) (74,352)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 383,870 458,222
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 376,756 383,870

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of EDISON OPTO
CORPORATION as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024 under the Criteria Governing the
Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of
Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 ,"Consolidated Financial Statements."
endored by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. In addition, the information
required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial
statements. Consequently, EDISON OPTO CORPORATION and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of
combined financial statements.

Company name: EDISON OPTO CORPORATION
Chairman: Jason Wu
Date: February 26, 2025.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of EDISON OPTO CORPORATION:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EDISON OPTO CORPORATION and its subsidiaries
(“the Edison Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2024
and 2023, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the EDISON OPTO CORPORATION and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International
Accounting Standards (“ IASs” ), Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Enggements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.The key auditor matters that, in our professional judgment, should be
communicated are as follows:

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
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1. Impairment evaluation of accounts receivable

Please refer to Note 4(g) “ Financial instruments” , Note 5(b) “ Significant accounting assumptions and
judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty”, and Note 6(e) “Notes and accounts receivable”.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the accounts receivable accounted for 19% of the total assets are
material to the financial statements. In addition, the provision of bad debt allowance is a subject to the
management’s judgment. Therefore, it has been identified as a key audit matter.

Our principal audit procedures included:

• Assess the impairment of accounts receivable and whether the impairment has been modified by policy.

• Examine the aging analysis table, analyze the reason of overdue collection and the situation of
subsequent collection.

•Evaluate the adequacy of impairment on the financial report date EDISON OPTO CORPORATION and
subsidiaries.

2.Revenue recognition

Please refer to Note 4(l) Revenue from contracts with customers, and Note 6(v) “Revenue”.

The major business activities of EDISON OPTO CORPORATION and subsidiaries are manufacturing,
selling, research and development of LED components and modules. Operating Revenue is the main
indicator for the management of Edison Consolidated Company and investor to evaluate the financial and
business performance of Edison Consolidated Company. Therefore, it has been identified as a key audit
matter.

Our principal audit procedures included: 

• Test the design and implementation of internal controls related with revenue recognition.

• A sample of sales revenue throughout the year is selected, and the external orders, packing lists and
various vouchers are checked to confirm that the operating income is recognized.

• Choose the period between the financial reporting, then examine the recognition of income transactions
and vouchers cover for the appropriate period.

Other Matter

Edison Opto Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial report for the year 2024 and 2023, on
which we have issued an unmodified opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs,
IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Edison Opto
Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the EDISON
OPTO CORPORATION or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Edison
Opto Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated  financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Edison Opto Corporation Limited’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Edison Opto Corporation’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’  report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated  financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the EDISON OPTO CORPORATION and subsidiaries.to
cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Edison Opto Corporation to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Consolidated Company audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’  report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’  report are Yang, Shu-Chih and
Chen, Pei-Chi.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 26, 2025

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

EDISON OPTO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Except Earnings Per Share)

2024 2023

Amount % Amount %

4000 Operating revenue (notes 6(v) and 7) $ 2,558,790 100 1,991,061 100
5000 Operating costs (notes 6(g)(j)(k)(q)) 1,926,389 75 1,479,712 74

Gross profit from operations 632,401 25 511,349 26
Operating expenses (notes 6(e)(f)(j)(k)(o)(q)(t)(w)):

6100 Selling expenses 151,033 6 143,761 7
6200 Administrative expenses 192,028 8 196,562 10
6300 Research and development expenses 146,068 5 129,774 7
6450 Expected impairment loss (reversed) (7) - (6,541) -

Total operating expenses 489,122 19 463,556 24
6900 Net operating income 143,279 6 47,793 2

Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(n)(o)(p)(x) and 7):
7100 Interest income 14,455 - 15,595 1
7010 Other income 7,956 - 5,582 -
7020 Other gain and losses 18,757 1 (6,448) -
7050 Finance costs (10,185) - (13,109) (1)

Total non-operating income and expenses 30,983 1 1,620 -
7900 Profit from continuing operations before tax 174,262 7 49,413 2
7950 Less: Income tax expenses (note 6(r)) 21,910 1 4,911 -

Profit 152,352 6 44,502 2
8300 Other comprehensive income: 
8310 Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
8311 Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6(q)) 372 - 63 -
8316 Unrealized (gains) losses from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (note 6(c)) (418) - (976) -
8349 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss - - - -
(46) - (913) -

8360 Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 82,188 3 (25,350) (1)
8399 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - -

Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss 82,188 3 (25,350) (1)
8300 Other comprehensive income (loss) 82,142 3 (26,263) (1)
8500 Total comprehensive income $ 234,494 9 18,239 1

Profit (loss), attributable to:
8610 Attributable to owners of parent $ 141,905 6 47,528 2
8620 Attributable to non-controlling interests 10,447 - (3,026) -

$ 152,352 6 44,502 2
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:

8710 Attributable to owners of parent $ 220,432 9 21,199 1
8720 Attributable to non-controlling interests 14,062 - (2,960) -

$ 234,494 9 18,239 1
Earnings per share (note 6(u))

9750 Basic earnings per share $ 1.00 0.35
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 0.99 0.35

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

EDISON OPTO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2024 2023
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:

Profit before tax $ 174,262 49,413
Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 122,122 124,565
Amortization expense 1,419 2,028
Expect impairment reversed (7) (6,541)
Net (gain) loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 242 (1,415)
Interest expense 10,185 13,109
Interest income (14,455) (15,595)
Share-based payments - 15,840
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 750 8,192
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 65 7
Loss on disposal of lease modification 2,369 -
Loss on bond redemption - 3

Total adjustments to reconcile profit 122,690 140,193
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Current contract assets (2,821) -
Accounts and notes receivable (213,416) (131,109)
Accounts receivable due from related parties 13,218 (13,218)
Other receivables (4,119) (115)
Inventories 29,216 (30,668)
Prepayments 9,575 5,577
Other current assets (5,742) 2,777
Other operating assets 1,160 (280)
Current contract liabilities (13,413) -
Accounts and notes payable 99,815 97,416
Other payable 12,956 22,598
Other current liabilities 9,894 319
Net defined benefit liability 709 708

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (62,968) (45,995)
Cash inflow generated from operations 233,984 143,611
Interest received 14,455 15,604
Interest paid (9,534) (9,796)
Income taxes (997) (13,333)

Net cash flows from operating activities 237,908 136,086
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:

Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost (37,500) (27,669)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised cost - 8,702
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (541,798) (8,367)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 547,132 2,367
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (52,646) (68,357)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,103 3,162
Decrease in refundable deposits 373 3,004
Acquisition of intangible assets (290) (1,563)
Increase in restricted deposits - 10,000
Increase in other non-current assets (41,909) (36)
Increase in prepayments for business facilities (26,810) (2,212)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (151,345) (80,969)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:

Increase in short-term loans 310,000 681,009
Decrease in short-term loans (491,185) (595,259)
Proceeds from issuing bonds 297,983 -
Repayments of bonds - (300)
Repayments of long-term debt (134,300) (156,480)
Increase (Decrease) in guarantee deposits received 8 (3)
Payment of lease liabilities (17,709) (14,867)
Cash dividends paid (70,792) (39,847)
Treasury shares sold to employees - 18,625
Change in non-controlling interests 33,125 (4,500)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (72,870) (111,622)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 40,864 (11,608)
Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 54,557 (68,113)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,086,224 1,154,337
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,140,781 1,086,224

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Edison Opto Corporation 

Comparison Table for the Amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation” 

Article order  Provisions after amendment  Provisions before amendment 
Explanation of 

amendment 

Article 18  If the Company has any surplus in the net 

profit for the year as concluded by the 

annual accounting book close, the Company 

shall set aside 1% to 10% of the current 

year’s net profit as profit sharing 

remuneration for employees, which shall be 

distributed in stock or cash by resolution of 

the Board of Directors, and the recipients of 

which include the employees of the 

subordinate companies who meet certain 

criteria, where the profit sharing 

remuneration for managerial officers shall be 

based on the Company's business strategy, 

profitability, their performance and 

contributions, and other factors, and with 

reference to the market level of salaries, with 

reference to the recommendation of the 

Remuneration Committee and approval of 

the Board of Directors;   

If the Company has a net profit after the final 

account for the year, it shall set aside 1% to 

5% for the salary adjustment or 

remuneration distribution to grassroots staff; 

the Board of Directors shall resolve to 

distribute remuneration of employees or 

adjust salaries, or adopt both methods 

concurrently; 

The Board of Directors shall determine by 

resolution to distribute no more than 3% of 

the aforementioned profit amount as the 

remuneration of Directors. 

The proposal for the distribution of 

remuneration of employees, remuneration of 

grassroots staff, and remuneration of 

Directors shall be reported at the 

shareholders’ meeting. 

However, if the Company has accumulated 

losses, the amount of losses make‐up shall 

be reserved in advance, and then the 

remuneration of employees, remuneration of 

grassroots staff, and remuneration of 

Directors shall be appropriated in accordance 

with the aforementioned percentages. 

If the Company has any surplus in the net 

profit for the year as concluded by the 

annual accounting book close, the Company 

shall set aside 5% to 15% of the current 

year’s net profit as profit sharing 

remuneration for employees, which shall be 

distributed in stock or cash by resolution of 

the Board of Directors, and the recipients of 

which include the employees of the 

subordinate companies who meet certain 

criteria, where the profit sharing 

remuneration for managerial officers shall be 

based on the Company's business strategy, 

profitability, their performance and 

contributions, and other factors, and with 

reference to the market level of salaries, with 

reference to the recommendation of the 

Remuneration Committee and approval of 

the Board of Directors; 

The Board of Directors shall determine by 

resolution to distribute no more than 3% of 

the aforementioned profit amount as the 

remuneration of Directors. 

The profit sharing remuneration for 

employees and directors shall be reported to 

the shareholders' meeting. 

However, if the Company has accumulated 

losses, the amount of losses make‐up shall 

be reserved in advance and then the 

employees and directors’ profit sharing 

remuneration shall be appropriated in 

accordance with the aforementioned 

percentages. 

According to 

Letter No. Jin‐

Guan‐Cheng‐Fa‐

11303854422 

dated November 

8, 2024, from the 

Financial 

Supervisory 

Commission, 

amended the 

Articles of 

Incorporation and 

added the 

appropriation 

ratio for 

remuneration of 

employees and 

remuneration of 

grassroots staff 

based on the 

requirements in 

paragraph 6, 

Article 14 of the 

Securities and 

Exchange Act: “A 

company referred 

to in the 

preceding 

paragraph shall 

specify in its 

articles of 

incorporation that 

a certain 

percentage of its 

annual earnings 

shall be allocated 

for salary 

adjustments or 

compensation 

distributions for 

its grassroots 

staff.” 

Article 20  The Articles of Incorporation were 

established on September 13, 2001. 

(Omitted) 

The 17th amendment was made on 

[MM/DD/YYYY]. 

The Articles of Incorporation were 

established on September 13, 2001. 

(Hereinafter omitted) 

Added the date of 

the amendment 

【Annex 6】
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Edison Opto Corporation 

Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles (full text before 

amendments) 

 

Chapter 1 General Provisions
Article 1 

To  build  a  favorable  governance  regulations  and  set  up  an  effective  corporate  governance  structure,  the 
Principles were established for observation.

Article 2 
The  Company  shall  comply with  the  laws,  regulations  and  the  Articles  of  Incorporation.    Apart  from  the 
contracts entered  into with TWSE or TPEx and  relevant  specifications,  the Company shall  comply with  the 
following principles: 
I. Protect shareholders’ rights and interests. 
II. Enhance the functions of the board of directors. 
III. Exert the functions of supervisors. 
IV. Respect stakeholders’ rights and interests. 
V. Improve information transparency.

Article 3 Establish the internal control system 
The  Company  established  the  requirements  for  the  Regulations  Governing  the  Internal  Control  System, 
designed and duly  implemented  its  internal control system by taking the overall operating activities of  the 
Company and its subsidiaries into consideration,    and make examinations at all times to respond to changes 
in  the  intern  and  external  environment  so  as  to  ensure  the  continuous  validity  of  the  design  and 
implementation of the system. 
Apart from duly organizing the self‐evaluation of the internal control system, the board of directors and the 
management shall at  least examine the self‐evaluation results of  the respective departments annually and 
examine the audit report issued by the audit department quarterly. The audit committee shall pay attention 
and  supervise  it.  Directors  and  the  audit  committee  shall  regularly  have  interviews with  internal  auditors 
regarding  the  examination of  the  deficiencies  of  the  internal  control  system with meeting minutes made, 
follow up and implement improvements, and report to the board of directors. The Company may establish 
communication channels and systems between Independent directors, the audit committee and the internal 
audit  officer,  and  the  convener  of  the  audit  committee  shall  report  the  communication  between  the 
members of the audit committee and the internal audit officer at the shareholders' meeting. 
The management  of  the  Company  shall  attach  attention  to  the  internal  audit  department  and  personnel, 
grant abundant authorities, urge them to duly examine and evaluate the deficiencies of the internal control 
system, measure operating efficiency to ensure the system can be implemented with continuous validity, and 
assist the board of directors and the management in duly fulfill their responsibilities, and in turn, implement 
the corporate governance system. 
The  appointment,  dismissal,  evaluation,  and  remuneration  of  the  Company's  internal  auditors  shall  be 
submitted to the board of directors or be reported to the chairman by the audit officer to sign for approval.

Article 3‐1 Personnel responsible for matters related to corporate governance 
The Company has an adequate number of corporate governance personnel with appropriate qualifications 
based on the size of the Company, business conditions, and management requirements. The Company has 
appointed  the  top  executive  of  the  financial  and  accounting  department  to  be  in  charge  of  corporate 
governance affairs. Said executive shall be a qualified, practice‐eligible lawyer or accountant or have been a 
supervisor in a securities, financial, or futures institution or a public company in handling legal affairs, legal 
compliance, internal audits, financial affairs, stock affairs, or corporate governance affairs for at least three 
years. 

【Annex 8】 
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Corporate governance affairs shall cover, at a minimum, the following: 
I. Handling of board meeting and shareholder meeting affairs. 
II. Preparation of board/shareholder meeting minutes. 
III. Assistance in onboarding and continuing education of the directors and supervisors. 
IV. Provision of information required for the performance of duties by the directors and supervisors. 
V. Assistance in the directors' and supervisors' compliance with the law. 
VI. Other tasks specified in Articles of Incorporation or contract. 

 
Chapter 2 Protect Shareholders’ Rights and Interests 
 
Article 4 Protect shareholders’ rights and interests 

The  corporate  governance  system  shall  protect  the  rights  and  interests  of  shareholders  and  treat  all 
shareholders  fairly.  The  Company  shall  establish  a  corporate  governance  system  that  ensures  that 
shareholders are entitled to the full acknowledgment, participation, and decision of material matters of 
the Company. 

Article 5 Convening shareholders’ meeting and formulate comprehensive rules of procedures 
The  Company  convenes  shareholders’  meetings  according  to  the  Company  Act  and  relevant  laws  and 
regulations,  and  has  formulated  comprehensive  rules  of  procedures.  Matters  to  be  resolved  by  the 
shareholders’  meeting  shall  be  duly  implemented  according  to  the  rules  of  procedures.  The  content  of 
resolutions  made  by  the  shareholders’  meeting  shall  comply  with  laws,  regulations,  and  the  Articles  of 
Incorporation. 

Article 6 Properly arrange the agenda and procedure of the shareholders' meeting 
The Company shall properly arrange the agenda and procedures of the shareholders' meeting, establish the 
principles and procedures for the nomination of directors, and the proposals for the shareholders' meeting 
by shareholders, and shall duly handle the proposals proposed by shareholders in accordance with the law; 
convenient  meeting  venue  shall  be  arranged  for  shareholders’  meeting,  and  a  supplementary  video 
conference shall be adopted; regarding the certifying documents presented by shareholders’ for attendance, 
the Company may not require additional other certifying documents at will; reasonable discussion time shall 
be granted for each proposal, and shareholders shall have appropriate opportunities to speak. 
For the shareholders’ meeting convened by the board of directors,  the Chairman of the board of directors 
should preside in person, and a majority of the directors (including at  least one independent director), the 
convener  of  the  audit  committee,  and  at  least  one  representative  of  other  functional  committees  should 
attend, and the attendance should be recorded in the shareholders’ meeting minutes. 

Article 7 Encourage shareholders to participate in corporate governance 
The  Company  encourages  shareholders  to  participate  in  corporate  governance,  and  shall  appoint  a 
professional stock affairs agent to handle shareholders’ meeting affairs, allowing shareholders’ meeting to be 
held  in  a  legal,  effective  and  safe manner.  The Company  shall  fully  adopt  technical  information disclosure 
approaches through various methods and channels, concurrently upload the annual report, annual financial 
statements, notice for the shareholders’ meeting, meeting handbook, and supplementary materials for the 
meeting  in both Chinese and English, and shall adopt electronic votes so as  to  improve  the attendance of 
shareholders  at  the  shareholders’ meeting  and  ensure  that  shareholders may  exercise  their  shareholders’ 
rights at the shareholders’ meeting according to the  law. The Company shall prevent proposing extempore 
motions and amendments to the initial proposals at the shareholders’ meeting. 
The  Company  shall  make  arrangements  for  shareholders  to  vote  at  the  shareholders’  meeting  for  each 
proposal and upload the results of votes for, votes against, and waived votes to MOPS on the day after the 
shareholders’ meeting.

Article 8 Minutes of the shareholders’ meeting 
The Company shall record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the chairperson's full name, the 
methods  by which  resolutions were  adopted,  and  a  summary  of  the  deliberations  and  the  results  in  the 
minutes  of  the  shareholders’  meeting  according  to  the  Company  Act  and  relevant  laws  and  regulations. 
Regarding the election of directors and independent directors, the voting method and the elected weights of 
the elected directors and independent directors shall be recorded. 
The minutes of the shareholders' meeting shall be kept properly and permanently throughout the duration 
of the Company, and shall be fully disclosed if the Company has a website.
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Article 9  The  chairperson of  the  shareholders’ meeting  shall  fully  acknowledge and  comply with  the  rules of 
procedures established by the Company 

The  chairperson  of  the  shareholders’  meeting  shall  fully  acknowledge  and  comply  with  the  rules  of 
procedures established by the Company, maintain the smooth flow of the agenda, and may not declare the 
meeting adjourned at will. 
To protect the rights and interests of the majority of shareholders,  if the chairperson declares the meeting 
adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the other members of the board of directors shall promptly 
assist the attending shareholders in electing a new chairperson in accordance with statutory procedures by 
agreement  of  a majority  of  the  votes  represented  by  the  attending  shareholders,  and  then  continue  the 
meeting. 

Article 10 Value shareholders’ rights to know and prevent insider trading 
The  Company  values  the  shareholders’  rights  to  know  and  duly  complies  with  requirements  related  to 
information disclosure. Regarding the finance, business, shareholding of insiders, and corporate governance 
status,  the  Company  provides  regular  and  real‐time  information  to  shareholders  through  MOPS  or  the 
website set up by the Company. 
To treat shareholders fairly, the publication of the information in the preceding paragraph shall be disclosed 
in English concurrently. 
To protect  shareholders’  rights  and  interests  and  realize  the  fair  treatment of  shareholders,  the Company 
established internal policies that prevent insiders from trading securities against non‐public information. 
The abovementioned policies include the control measures for stock transactions of insiders of the Company 
from the date of acknowledging the Company's financial statements or relevant performance, including (but 
not  limited  to)  that  directors  shall  not  trade  their  stocks  during  the  lock‐up  period  of  30  days  before  the 
announcement of  the annual  financial  statements and 15 days before  the announcement of  the quarterly 
financial statements. 

Article 10‐1 Report the remuneration of directors at the shareholders’ meeting 
The  Company  shall  report  the  remuneration  received  by  directors  at  an  annual  shareholders’  meeting, 
including  the  remuneration  policy,  the  content  of  individual  remunerations,  amounts,  and  the  correlation 
with the results of the performance evaluation.

Article 11 Shareholders shall be entitled to share earnings of the Company 
Shareholders  shall  be  entitled  to  share  earnings  of  the  Company.  To  ensure  the  investment  rights  and 
interests of shareholders, the shareholders’ meeting may perform and audit of the statements prepared by 
the board of directors and reports of the audit committee according to Article 184 of the Company Act and 
make  the  resolution  on  earning  distribution  or  loss  compensation. When  conducting  the  examination  set 
forth in the preceding paragraph, the shareholders' meeting may select and appoint inspectors as required. 
Shareholders may apply with the court for the selection and appointment of inspectors according to Article 
245 of the Company Act to inspect the business accounts, property status, particular matters, and particular 
transaction documents and records of the Company. 
The  board  of  directors,  audit  committee  and  managers  of  the  Company  shall  cooperate  fully  with  the 
inspectors in the preceding two paragraphs, and shall not have evasion, hindrance or refusal. 

Article 12 Significant financial and business acts shall be approved by the shareholders’ meeting 
The acquisitions or disposals of assets,  loaning of funds, endorsements and guarantees, and other material 
financial  and  business  acts  of  the  Company  shall  be  reported  to  the  shareholders’  meeting  for  approval 
according  to  relevant  laws  and  regulations  and  the  procedures  formulated  by  the  Company  to  protect 
shareholders’ rights and interests. 
In the event of a merger or acquisition or public acquisition,  the Company shall comply with relevant  laws 
and regulations, shall also pay attention to the fairness and reasonableness of the plans and transactions of 
the merger or acquisition, and shall also pay attention to the disclosure of information and the soundness of 
the Company's financial structure subsequently. 
If  the  management  or  a  major  shareholder  of  the  Company  participates  in  the  merger  or  acquisition, 
Whether  members  of  the  audit  committee  who  review  and  discuss  the  merger  or  acquisition  in  the 
preceding  paragraph  comply  with  Article  3  of  the  Regulations  Governing  Appointment  of  Independent 
Directors  and  Compliance  Matters  for  Public  Companies,  and  they  shall  not  be  related  parties  to  the 
counterparty of the merger or acquisition or have interests that affect their independent, whether that the 
design and implementation of relevant procedures comply with relevant laws and regulations, and whether 
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the  information  is  fully  disclosed  according  to  relevant  laws  and  regulations,  an  independent  lawyer  shall 
issue its legal opinion. 
The  qualification  of  the  lawyer  in  the  preceding  period  shall  comply  with  Article  3  of  the  Regulations 
Governing Appointment of  Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies, and shall 
not  be  related parties  to  the  counterparty  of  the merger  or  acquisition or  have  interests  that  affect  their 
independent. 
Personnel dealing with merger or acquisition or public acquisition of the Company shall pay attention to the 
conflicts of interest and the recusal. 

Article 13 There shall be dedicated personnel in place to duly deal with shareholders’ recommendations 
To protect the rights and interests of shareholders, there shall be dedicated personnel in place to duly deal 
with shareholders’ recommendations, suspicions, and disputes. 
If shareholders’ rights and interests are harmed due to the resolutions made by the shareholders’ meeting or 
board meeting of the Company violating laws and regulations or articles of incorporation or the violation of 
laws  and  regulations  or  articles  of  incorporation  by  directors,  independent  directors,  or  managers  when 
executing their duties, the Company shall duly deal with litigations raised by shareholders according to the 
law. 
The Company shall establish internal procedures to duly deal with matters in the preceding two paragraphs, 
keep written records for future reference, and include them in the internal control system for control. 

Article 13‐1 The board of directors is responsible for establishing interactive systems with shareholders 
The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing interactive systems with shareholders 
to improve the joint understanding of both parties regarding the targets and development of the Company. 

Article 13‐2 Communicate with and contact shareholders with effective methods and obtain their support 
Apart from communicating with shareholders through shareholders’ meetings and encouraging shareholders 
to  participate  in  shareholders’  meetings,  the  board  of  directors  contacts  shareholders  with  effective 
methods, jointly understands the opinions of and issues of concern of shareholders, and accurately explains 
the Company’s policies with managers and independent directors to obtain their support 

Article 14 Firewalls shall be established between affiliates 
The management  targets,  authorities,  and  responsibilities  of  personnel,  assets,  and  finance  between  the 
Company  and  its  affiliates  shall  be  accurate,  and  the  Company  shall  duly  implement  risk  assessment  and 
establish appropriate firewalls.   

Article 15 A manager shall not concurrently be a manager of an affiliate 
Unless otherwise specified by laws, a manager shall avoid concurrently being a manager of an affiliate. 
A  director who  does  anything  for  himself  or  on  behalf  of  another  person  that  is within  the  scope  of  the 
company's business, shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the essential contents of such an act and 
secure its approval. 

Article 16 Establish a healthy financial, business, and accounting management system 
The  Company  established  a  healthy  financial,  business,  and  accounting management  system  according  to 
relevant laws and regulations, duly implemented comprehensive risk assessment for main banks, customers, 
and supplies with its affiliates, and implemented necessary control systems to reduce credit risks.

Article 17 If the Company has business dealings with an affiliate,  it shall be based on the principle of fairness 
and reasonableness 

If the Company has business dealings with affiliates, the Company shall establish written regulations on the 
relevant  financial  or  business  operations  between  the  two  parties  based  on  the  principle  of  fairness  and 
reasonableness.  The  price,  conditions,  and  payment  methods  shall  be  clearly  defined  for  the  contract 
signing, and non‐regular transactions shall be prevented. 
The  transactions or contracts between the Company and  its  related parties and shareholders shall also be 
handled  in  accordance  with  the  aforementioned  principles,  and  the  transmission  of  benefits  is  strictly 
forbidden. 

Article 18 Matters of compliance shall be stated for corporate shareholders who have control over the Company
A corporate shareholder who has control over the Company shall comply with the following matters: 
I. It  shall assume the  fiduciary duty  to other shareholders and shall not directly or  indirectly cause the 

Company  to  engage  in  operations  not  complying  with  operating  norms  or  other  disadvantageous 
operations. 

II. The  representative  of  the  corporate  shareholder  shall  comply  with  the  regulations  related  to  the 
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exercise  of  rights  and  the  participation  in  voting  that  were  established  by  the  Company.  When 
participating in the shareholders’ meeting, it shall exercise its voting rights based on the principles of 
good  faith with  shareholders’  optimal  benefits  in mind  and duly  fulfill  the obligations of  loyalty  and 
care of directors and independent directors. 

III. The nomination of the Company's directors and independent directors shall be in accordance with the 
relevant  laws and  regulations  and  the Company's  articles  of  incorporation,  and  shall  not  exceed  the 
scope of authority of the shareholders' meeting and the board of directors. 

IV. It shall not interfere with the Company’s decision‐making or hinder operating activities. 
V. It  shall  not  restrict  or  hinder  the  Company's  production  and  management  through  monopoly 

purchases, closing sales channels, or other unfair competition methods. 
VI. Corporate  representatives  who  are  appointed  as  they  are  elected  directors  or  independent 

directors  shall  comply with the professional qualification  required by  the Company;  reassignment 
shall not be made at will. 

Article 19 List of major shareholders and ultimate controllers of major shareholders 
The list of major shareholders and ultimate controllers of major shareholders who hold major shareholding 
ratios and can control the Company shall be readily available to the Company at all times. 
The Company shall regularly disclose the shares pledged, increased, or decreased of shareholders who hold 
over 10% of shares or other material matters that may trigger changes  in shares for other shareholders to 
supervise. 
Major shareholders, as referred to in paragraph 1, are shareholders with a shareholding ratio of 5% or more, 
or the top ten shareholders in terms of shareholding ratio. However, the shareholding ratio may be revised 
downward depending on the shareholding that controls the Company. 

 
Chapter 3 Enhance the Functions of the Board of Directors 

 
Article 20 Abilities that the overall board of directors shall possess 

The board of directors shall lead the Company’s strategies, supervise the management, be held responsible 
to  the  Company  and  its  shareholders,  and  it  shall  ensure  that  the board  of  directors  exercises  its  powers 
according  to  laws  and  regulations,  articles  of  incorporation,  or  resolutions  made  by  the  shareholders’ 
meeting regarding the operations and arrangements of the corporate governance system. 
Regarding  the structure of  the board of directors,  the Company shall decide on an appropriate number of 
directors that is five or above based on the operating and development scale and the shareholding of major 
shareholders with reference to the operating requirements of practices. 
Except  for directors who are concurrently managers of  the Company being no more  than one‐third of  the 
number of directors,  the composition of  the board of directors  shall be made by taking  into consideration 
diversity,  and  appropriate  diversity  guidelines  shall  be  made  with  respect  to  the  Company’s  operation, 
business type and development needs, which shall  include, but not be  limited to,  the following two major 
criteria: 
I. Basic  conditions  and  value:  Gender,  age,  nationality,  and  culture;  the  ratio  of  female  directors  shall 

reach one‐third of the number of directors or above. 
II. II. Professional knowledge and skills: Professional background (e.g.,  law, accounting, industry, finance, 

marketing or technology), professional skills and industry experience, etc. 
Board members should generally possess the knowledge, skills and qualities necessary to perform their 
duties. To achieve the ideal target of corporate governance, the overall competencies that the board of 
directors shall possess are as follows: 

I. The ability to make judgments about operations 
II. Accounting and financial analysis ability. 
III. Business management ability. 
IV. Crisis management ability. 
V. Industry Knowledge 
VI. An international market perspective. 
VII. Leadership 
VIII. Decision‐making ability. 

Article 21 Formulate election procedures for directors that are fair, just, and open

44



 

 

The  Company  shall  formulate  election  procedures  for  directors  that  are  fair,  just,  and  open  based  on  the 
principles  of  protecting  shareholders’  rights  and  interests  and  treating  shareholders  fairly,  encourage 
shareholders’ participation, and adopt the cumulative voting system according to the Company Act to fully 
reflect shareholders’ opinions. 
Except for those approved by the competent authority, more than half of the directors should have neither a 
spouse nor relatives within the second degree of kinship in any other director. 
When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director for any reason, the Company 
shall hold a director by‐election at the next following shareholders' meeting. When the number of directors 
falls  short by one‐third of  the  total number prescribed by  the articles of  incorporation,  the company shall 
convene  a  special  shareholders' meeting within  60  days  of  the  occurrence  of  that  fact  to  hold  a  director 
by‐election. 
The total shareholding ratio of all directors of the board of directors shall comply with laws and regulations, 
the  transfer  restriction, pledge creation and cancelation, and other changes  in  the  shares of each director 
shall comply with relevant requirements, and the information shall be fully disclosed. 

Article 22 The articles of incorporation specify that the candidate nomination system is adopted for the election 
of directors 

Before  convening  a  shareholders’  meeting  for  the  election  of  directors,  the  Company  shall  duly  evaluate 
whether  circumstances  set  out  in  the  subparagraphs  of  Article  30  of  the  Company  Act  occur  to  the 
nominees’ qualifications, and it shall make arrangements according to Article 192‐1. 

Article 23 The authorization of  the board of directors  to  functional committees, chairman, and president and 
their duties shall be clearly defined 

The duties of the chairman and the president shall be clearly defined. 
The chairman and president or other equivalent positions shall not be assumed by the same person. 
If it is necessary to set up a functional committee, its duties shall be clearly defined. 

Article 24 Have independent directors in place in accordance with the articles of incorporation 
I. The Company has two or more independent directors in accordance with the articles of incorporation, 

and the number of independent directors shall not be less than one‐third of the number of directors. 
The term of office of the independent directors shall not exceed three sessions. 

II. Independent directors shall possess professional knowledge, and their shareholding shall be restricted. 
In addition to arrangements made according to relevant laws and regulations, an independent director 
shall  not  concurrently  be  the  director  (independent  director)  or  supervisor  of  over  five  listed 
companies, shall maintain its independence within the scope of business execution, and shall not have 
direct or indirect interests in the Company. 

III. If  the Company,  its conglomerate, and organization and another company and  its conglomerate, and 
organization  have  mutually  nominated  a  director,  supervisor,  or  manager  of  the  other  party  as  an 
independent director candidate, the Company shall make disclosures when accepting the nomination 
of  the  independent  director  candidate  and  describe  the  adequacy  of  the  independent  director 
candidate.  If  the  said  person  is  elected  as  an  independent  director,  the  elected  weights  shall  be 
disclosed. 
Regarding the conglomerate and organization referred to in the paragraph, the applicable scope covers 
incorporated  foundations  that  the  Company  and  its  subsidiaries  directly  or  indirectly  donated  funds 
that exceed 50% in accumulation and other institutions or corporations with substantial control. 

IV. Independent directors and non‐independent directors shall not change their  identity during the term 
of office. 

V. Professional  qualification,  restrictions  on  shareholding  and  concurrent  positions,  recognition  of 
independence, nomination method, and other compliance matters of  independent directors  shall be 
subject  to  the  Securities  and  Exchange  Act,  Regulations  Governing  Appointment  of  Independent 
Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies, and requirements of the TWSE or TPEx.

Article  25  Matters  to  be  proposed  to  the  board  of  directors  for  resolution  and  approval
The Company has independent directors in place. Except for those approved by the competent authority, the 
following  matters  shall  be  submitted  to  the  board  of  directors  for  resolution  and  approval;  if  any 
independent director has an opposing opinion or qualified opinion, it shall be set out in the minutes of the 
board meeting:   
I. Establish or amend the internal control system in accordance with Article 14‐1 of the Securities and 
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Exchange Act. 
II. Establish or amend procedures for the acquisition or disposal of assets, engaging in derivative 

transactions, loans to others, provision of endorsements or guarantees to others, and other material 
financial and business acts. 

III. Matters involving the interests of directors or supervisors. 
IV. Significant assets or derivatives transactions. 
V. Significant loans to others, endorsements or provision of guarantees. 
VI. Offering, issuance or private placement of equity‐type securities. 
VII. Appointment, dismissal or remuneration of certified public accountants. 
VIII. Appointment and dismissal of financial, accounting or internal audit officers. 
IX. Other significant matters specified by the competent authority.

Article 26 Specify the scope of duties of independent directors 
The Company shall specify the scope of duties of independent directors and provide relevant personnel and 
material resources for the exercise of their powers. The Company or other members of the board of directors 
may  not   h inder,   re ject ,   or   avoid   the  execut ion  of   dut ies   by  independent   directors .
The  Company  shall  specify  the  remuneration  of Directors  according  to  relevant  laws  and  regulations.  The 
remuneration  of  directors  shall  fully  reflect  the  individual  performance  and  the  long‐term  operating 
performance  of  the  Company  with  comprehensive  considerations  given  to  the  operating  risks  of  the 
Company. The Company may determine reasonable remuneration for independent directors that is different 
from that of general directors. 

Article 27 Establishment of functional committees 
To improve the supervisory function and strengthen the management function, the board of directors may 
establish the audit, remuneration, nomination, risk management, or other functional committees by taking 
into  account  the  scale  of  the  Company,  business  nature,  and  the  number  of  board  members,  and  may 
establish  environmental  protection,  corporate  social  responsibility,  or  other  committees  based  on  the 
philosophy of corporate social responsibility and sustainable management, and specify in the articles. 
Functional  committees  shall  be  held  responsible  to  the  board  of  directors,  and  their  proposals  shall  be 
submitted to the board of directors for resolution. However, this does not apply to the exercise of the powers 
of  supervisors  by  the  audit  committee  in  accordance with  paragraph  4,  Article  14‐4  of  the  Securities  and 
Exchange Act. 
A functional committee shall establish its regulations of organization, subject to approval by resolution at the 
board of directors meeting. The regulations of organization shall provide for matters including the number of 
the committee members, term of office, powers and authorities, rules of procedure, and resources provided 
by the company to facilitate its exercise of powers.

Article 28 Audit committee 
I. The Company has its audit committee in place. The audit committee shall be composed of the entire 

number of  independent directors.  It  shall not be  fewer  than  three persons  in number, one of whom 
shall be convener, and at least one of whom shall have accounting or financial expertise. 

II. The exercise of  the powers of  the audit  committee and  its members who are  independent directors 
shall  comply with  the Securities and Exchange Act, Regulations Governing  the Exercise of  Powers by 
Audit Committees of Public Companies, and requirements of the TWSE or TPEx. 

Article 28‐1 of the Remuneration committee 
I. The  Company  has  its  remuneration  committee  in  place,  and  over  half  of  the  members  shall  be 

independent  directors.  The  professional  qualifications  and  the  exercise  of  powers  of  members,  the 
establishment of the charter, and relevant matters shall be subject to the “Regulations Governing the 
Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee of a Company Whose Stock  is 
Listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange.” 

Article 28‐2 May establish the nomination committee   
The Company may establish the nomination committee and establish the charter. Over half of the members 
shall be Independent directors, and an independent director shall be the chairperson. 

Article 28‐3 Whistleblowing system 
The Company shall establish and announce the whistleblowing channels for internal and external personnel 
and  establish  the whistleblower  protection  system.  The  acceptance department  shall  have  independence, 
encrypt  the  documents  provided  by  whistleblowers  for  protection,  duly  limit  access,  establish  internal 
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procedures, and include them in the internal control system for control.
Article 29 Strengthen and improve the quality of financial statements 

To improve the quality of financial statements, the Company has appointed a substitute for the accounting 
officer. 
The substitute of the accounting officer referred to in the preceding paragraph shall participate in continuing 
education  each  year  as  he/she  is  the  accounting  officer  to  reinforce  the  professional  capabilities  of  the 
substitute of the accounting officer. 
The accountants who prepare the financial statements shall also participate in relevant professional courses 
for  six  hours  or  more  each  year  by  participating  in  internal  education  and  training  of  the  Company  or 
professional courses organized by competent continuing education institutions for accounting. 
The  Company  shall  select  professional,  responsible  and  independent  CPAs  to  perform  audits  on  the 
Company's  financial  position  and  internal  control  on  a  regular  basis.  The  Company  shall  duly  make 
examinations and improvements for anomalies or deficiencies found and disclosed by CPAs during the course 
of  auditing  in  due  course  and  the  substantial  improvement  or  anti‐fraud  opinions,  establish  the 
communication  channels  or  systems  between  independent  directors  or  the  audit  committee  and  CPAs, 
establish internal procedures, and include them in the internal control system for control. 
The Company shall regularly (at least once a year) assess the independence and suitability of the appointed 
CPAs.  If  the  Company  has  not  changed  its  CPAs  for  seven  consecutive  years  or  the  CPAs  are  subject  to 
disciplinary action or have harmed their independence, the Company shall assess whether it is necessary to 
change its CPAs, and the assessment results shall be reported to the board of directors. 

Article 30 Provide appropriate legal services to the Company 
The Company has appointed professional and competent  lawyers to provide appropriate  legal consultation 
services  to  the  Company,  or  assist  the  board  of  directors,  independent  directors  and  the management  to 
improve their legal literacy, prevent the Company and related personnel from violating laws and regulations, 
and  facilitate  the  operation  of  its  corporate  governance  in  compliance with  relevant  legal  structures  and 
statutory procedures. 
In the event of any litigation of directors, supervisors, or management due to the execution of business and 
disputes with shareholders, the Company shall engage a lawyer for assistance subject to the circumstances. 
The  audit  committee  or  its members who  are  independent  directors may  engage  lawyers,  CPAs,  or  other 
professional personnel on behalf of  the Company  to perform necessary audits or provide  consultation  for 
matters related to the exercise of powers, with the fees borne by the Company. 

Article 31 Convene the board meeting 
The board meeting shall be convened at least once a quarter, and it may be convened at any time in case of 
emergency.  To  convene  a  board  meeting,  set  out  the  reason  for  the  meeting,  notify  the  directors  and 
supervisors  seven  days  before  the meeting,  and  provide  abundant meeting materials  that  are  dispatched 
together  with  the  meeting  notice.  If  the  meeting  materials  are  insufficient,  the  directors  are  entitled  to 
request supplementation or the review may be postponed upon the resolution of the board of directors. 
The  Company  has  established  its  Rules  of  Procedures  for  Board  Meetings.  The  main  agenda  items, 
procedures, matters to be set out  in the meeting minutes, announcements, and other compliance matters 
shall  be  subject  to  the  Regulations  Governing  Procedure  for  Board  of  Directors  Meetings  of  Public 
Companies. 

Article 32 Directors shall maintain a high level of self‐discipline 
Directors shall maintain a high level of self‐discipline.  If a director or the corporation that  it represents has 
any  interests  in  any  proposal  at  a  board  meeting,  he/she  shall  explain  the  material  content  of  his/her 
interests  at  the  board  meeting.  If  it  may  harm  the  Company’s  benefits,  the  director  may  not  join  the 
discussion and voting and shall recuse himself/herself from the discussion and voting, and may not exercise 
the voting rights on behalf of another director. 
Matters that directors shall recuse themselves shall be specified in the Rules of Procedure for Board Meetings

Article 33 Independent directors and the board of directors 
I. Independent  directors  of  the  Company  shall  attend  the  board meeting  in  person  for matters  to  be 

proposed at the board meeting according to Article 14‐3 of the Securities and Exchange Act and may 
not engage non‐independent directors as their proxies. If any independent director has an opposing or 
qualified opinion, it shall be set out in the minutes of the board meeting. If an independent director is 
unable to attend the board meeting in person to express his/her opposing or qualified opinion, he/she 
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shall  issue a written opinion  in advance and set out  in the minutes of the board meeting apart from 
having justifiable reasons. 

II. If any of the following circumstances occurs to the resolutions made at the board meeting, apart from 
setting  out  in  the meeting minutes,  announcements  and  filings  shall  be made  on MOPS  two  hours 
before the trading time on the business day following the date of the board meeting: 
(I) Any independent director has an opposing or qualified opinion with a record or written declaration.
(II) Matters not approved by the audit committee but approved by two‐thirds of all directors. 

III. During the board meeting, managers of relevant departments who are not directors may be noticed to 
present at the meeting subject to the content of the proposal to report the business overview of the 
Company  at  present  and  answer questions  raised by  directors.  If  necessary,  the Company may  also 
invite CPAs, lawyers or other professionals to present at the meeting to help the directors understand 
the  Company's  current  status  and  make  appropriate  resolutions.  However,  they  shall  excuse 
themselves from the discussion and voting.

Article 34 Minutes of board meetings 
Personnel for a board meeting shall record the reports at the meeting, a summary of the deliberations, the 
methods by which resolutions were adopted, and the results in detail according to relevant requirements. 
Minutes  of  a  board meeting  shall  be  signed  or  sealed  by  the meeting  chairperson  and  the  recorder  and 
dispatched to all directors within 20 days from the meeting. The sign‐in record of a board meeting forms a 
part  of  the  meeting  minutes  and  shall  be  included  in  important  files  of  the  Company  and  permanently 
preserved throughout the duration of the Company. 
The meeting minutes may be produced, distributed, and preserved in electronic form. 
The Company shall preserve the audio or video recording throughout the conference of a board meeting and 
preserve it for at least five years; it may be preserved in electronic form. 
Before the expiry of the preservation period in the preceding paragraph, if any litigation occurs to resolutions 
of  the  board  of  directors,  relevant  audio  or  video  recordings  shall  continue  to  be  preserved,  and  the 
requirements in the preceding paragraph shall not apply. 
If a video conference is adopted for the board meeting, the audio and video recordings of the meeting form 
a part of the meeting minutes, and shall be permanently preserved. 
Where any resolution adopted by the board of directors violates laws and regulations, Articles, or resolutions 
of the shareholders’ meeting and harms the Company, directors whose disagreement appears on record or is 
expressed in writing shall be exempted from the compensation liability.

Article 35 Matters to be proposed to the board of directors for discussion 
The following matters shall be submitted to the board meeting for discussion: 
I. Business plan of the Company. 
II. Annual financial statements and interim financial statements. However, this shall not apply to interim 

financial  statements  that  do  not  require  the  audit  and  certification  of  CPAs  according  to  laws  and 
regulations. 

III. Establishment of or amendment to the internal control system in accordance with Article 14‐1 of the 
Securities and Exchange Act and the evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control system. 

IV. Establish  or  amend  procedures  for  the  acquisition  or  disposal  of  assets,  engaging  in  derivative 
transactions,  loans to others, provision of endorsements or guarantees to others, and other material 
financial and business acts. 

V. Offering, issuance or private placement of equity‐type securities. 
VI. Performance evaluation and remuneration standards for managers 
VII. Structure and system for the remuneration of directors. 
VIII. Appointment and dismissal of financial, accounting or internal audit officers. 
IX. Donations  to  related  parties  or  material  donations  to  non‐related  parties.  However,  donations  for 

public welfare  due  to  emergency  relief made  for  severe  natural  disasters may  be  submitted  to  the 
following board meeting for ratification. 

X. Matters to be resolved by the shareholders’ meeting or the board meeting according to Article 14‐3 of 
the  Securities  and  Exchange  Act  and  other  laws  and  regulations  or  Articles  or  material  matters 
specified by the competent authority. 

In  addition  to matters  to  be  submitted  to  the  board meeting  for  discussion  in  the  preceding  paragraph, 
during the recess of the board meeting,  those who are authorized to exercise the powers of the board of 
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directors by the board of directors according to laws and regulations or Articles, their level of authorization, 
content, or matters shall be accurate, and general authorization is not allowed. 

Article  36  Matters  related  to  the  resolutions  of  the  board  of  directors  shall  be  accurately  assigned  to 
appropriate execution departments or personnel 

The  Company  shall  accurately  assign  matters  related  to  the  resolutions  of  the  board  of  directors  to 
appropriate  execution  departments  or  personnel,  require  them  to  implement  based  on  the  planned 
timetable  and  targets,  and  include  them  in  follow‐up management  to  duly  evaluate  the  implementation 
status. 
The board of directors shall fully grasp the implementation progress and report at the upcoming meeting so 
as to implement the business decisions of the board of directors.

Article 37 Board members shall faithfully implement businesses and duly fulfill the obligation of care of a good 
administrator 

Members of the board of directors shall faithfully conduct corporate affairs and perform the duty of care of a 
good administrator.  In  conducting  the affairs of  the  company,  they  shall  exercise  their powers with a high 
level  of  self‐discipline  and  prudence.  Unless  matters  are  otherwise  reserved  by  law  or  in  the  articles  of 
incorporation for approval in shareholders meetings, they shall ensure that all matters are handled according 
to the resolutions of board of directors. 
The Company has established  its regulations for the performance evaluation of the board and procedures. 
Apart from regularly carrying out the self‐evaluation or peer evaluation of the board of directors, functional 
committees,  and  individual  directors  each  year,  the  Company  may    engage  a  professional  external 
institution or adopt other appropriate methods to carry out the performance evaluation. The content of the 
performance evaluation of  the board of directors  shall  include  the  following aspects,  and  the appropriate 
evaluation indicators shall be established by taking into account the requirements of the Company: 
I. Participation in the operation of the company; 
II. Improvement of the quality of the board of directors' decision making; 
III. Composition and structure of the board of directors; 
IV. Election and continuing education of the directors;   
V. Internal control. 
Performance evaluation of the board members (on themselves or peers) should cover the following aspects 
and is subject to appropriate adjustments with the company's needs being taken into consideration: 
I. Alignment of the goals and mission of the company; 
II. Awareness of the duties of a director; 
III. Participation in the operation of the company; 
IV. Management of internal relationship and communication; 
V. The director's professionalism and continuing education;   
VI. Internal control. 
The  Company  shall  carry  out  the  performance  evaluation  of  functional  committees,  and  the  evaluation 
content shall  include  the  following aspects; appropriate adjustments shall be made by  taking  into account 
the requirements of the Company: 
I. Level of participation in the Company's operations. 
II. Awareness towards duties of the functional committee. 
III. Improvements to the quality of decisions made by functional committees. 
IV. Composition of the functional committee and selection of committee members. 
V. Internal control. 
The Company shall report the results of the performance evaluation to the board of directors and use them 
as the reference for the remuneration and nomination for re‐appointment of individual directors.

Article 37‐1 Establish the succession plan for the management 
The  Company  shall  establish  the  succession  plan  for  the  management,  and  the  board  of  directors  shall 
regularly evaluate the development and implementation of the plan to ensure sustainable management.

Article 37‐2 Establish an intellectual property management system 
Regarding  the business directions and performance of  the Company’s  intellectual properties,  the board of 
directors  shall  carry  out  evaluations  and  supervision  based  on  the  following  aspects  to  ensure  that  the 
Company establishes its intellectual property management system based on the management cycle of “Plan, 
Do, Check, Act (PDCA).” 
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I. Formulate intellectual property management policies, targets, and systems related to business strategie
II. Establish,  implement,  and  maintain  the  management  system  for  the  acquisition,  protection, 

maintenance, and utilization of intellectual property based on the scale and form. 
III. Decide and provide resources that are required to effectively implement and maintain the intellectual 

property management system. 
IV. Monitor the internal and external risks or opportunities related to intellectual property management 

and adopt countermeasures. 
V. Plan  for  and  implement  a  continuous  improvement  system  to  ensure  that  the  operation  and 

achievement of the intellectual property management system meet the Company's expectations.
Article 38 Shareholders or independent directors require the board of directors to stop the implementation of 

their resolutions 
If a resolution at the board meeting violates laws and regulations or articles of incorporation, a shareholder 
who has held shares for over one year or an independent director may require the board of directors to stop 
the implementation of their resolutions, and members of the board of directors shall duly handle or stop the 
implementation of the resolution as soon as possible. 
If a member of the board of directors discovers that there are risks of material damages to the Company, it 
shall  make  arrangements  according  to  the  preceding  paragraph  and  immediately  report  to  the  audit 
committee or members of the audit committee who are independent directors. 

Article 39 Liability insurance for directors 
The  Company  shall  purchase  liabilities  insurance  for  directors  during  their  term  of  office  for  the
compensation  responsibility  within  the  scope  of  business  execution  according  to  the  law  to  reduce  the
disperse the risks of material damages to the Company and shareholders due to the mistakes or negligence
of directors. 
After the Company has purchased or renewed liability insurance for the directors, the Company shall report 
the amount of liability insurance, coverage and premium rate to the coming Board of Directors’ meeting.

Article 40 Board members participate in continuing education programs 
It  is  advisable  that  board  members  continue  to  participate  in  financial,  risk  management,  business, 
commercial,  accounting,  or  legal,  and  other  continuing  education  courses  organized  by  institutions 
designated in the Directions for the Implementation of Continuing Education for Directors and Supervisors of 
TWSE  Listed  and  TPEx  Listed  Companies  that  cover  corporate  governance  themes  and  ask  employees  of 
different levels to improve their professional and legal knowledge upon being newly appointed or during the 
term of office. 

 
Chapter 4 Exert the Functions of Independent Directors 

 
Article 41 Formulate election procedures for independent directors that are fair, just, and open 

The Company shall formulate election procedures for independent directors that are fair, just, and open and 
adopt the cumulative voting system according to the Company Act to fully reflect shareholders’ opinions. 
The  Company  shall  consider  the  overall  operating  requirements  and  establish  the  minimum  number  of 
independent directors according to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act. 
The total shareholding ratio of all independent directors shall comply with laws and regulations, the transfer 
restriction, pledge creation and cancelation, and other changes  in the shares of each  independent director 
shall comply with relevant requirements, and the information shall be fully disclosed. 

Article 42 The articles of incorporation specify that the candidate nomination system is adopted for the election 
of independent directors 

The  Company  shall  specify  in  its  articles  of  incorporation  that  the  candidate  nomination  system  shall  be 
adopted  for  the  election  of  independent  directors  according  to  laws  and  regulations  of  the  competent 
authority. For the election of independent directors, the Company shall duly evaluate whether circumstances 
set out in the subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act occur to the nominees’ qualifications, and it 
shall make arrangements according to Article 192‐1. 

Article 43 Among independent directors or between independent directors and directors, at least one of them 
is not a spouse or a relative within the second degree of kinship. 

Unless  approved  by  the  competent  authority,  among  independent  directors  or  between  independent 
directors and directors, at least one of them is not a spouse or a relative within the second degree of kinship.
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The  Company  shall  elect  appropriate  independent  directors  with  reference  to  requirements  related  to 
independence in the Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters 
for  Public  Companies  to  improve  the  risk management  of  the  Company  and  its  control  over  finance  and 
operations. 
Independent directors shall have a domicile in Taiwan to exert the real‐time supervising function. 

Article 44 Independent directors shall familiarize themselves with relevant legal requirements and understand 
the rights, interests, obligations, and responsibilities of directors of the Company 

Independent  directors  shall  familiarize  themselves  with  relevant  legal  requirements  and  understand  the 
rights,  interests,  obligations,  and  responsibilities  of  directors  of  the  Company,  the work  division  between 
different departments, and the content of operations. They shall present at board meetings to supervise its 
operating status and raise their opinions in due course to grasp or discover anomalies early. 
The Company shall specify  the remuneration of  independent directors  in  its articles of  incorporation or by 
resolution of the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 45 Independent directors shall supervise the execution of the Company's business and the performance 
of duties by directors and managers 

Independent  directors  shall  supervise  the  execution  of  the  Company's  business  and  the  performance  of 
duties  by  directors  and managers,  and  shall  also  pay  attention  to  the  implementation  of  the  Company's 
internal control system, so as to reduce the financial crisis and operating risks of the Company. 
In case a director transacts a sale with, borrows money from or conducts any legal act with the Company for 
himself/herself or others, the independent directors shall act as the representative of the Company. 

Article 46 Independent directors may investigate the Company's business and financial status at any time 
Independent directors may investigate the Company's business and financial status at any time. The relevant 
departments of the Company shall cooperate  in providing the required books and documents required for 
auditing, transcription, or duplication. 
When  independent  directors  perform  audits  of  the  Company's  finance  and  business,  they  may  engage 
lawyers or CPAs to perform the audit on behalf of the Company; however, the Company shall notify relevant 
personnel of their confidentiality obligation. 
The board of directors or managers shall submit reports based on the requests of independent directors, and 
may not avoid, hinder or reject the inspection of independent directors. 
When independent directors perform their duties, the Company shall provide necessary assistance based on 
their requirements, and the reasonable expenses that they require shall be borne by the Company. 

Article 47 Establish communication channels between employees, shareholders, stakeholders, and independent 
directors 

To allow independent directors to discover possible malpractices of the Company in time, the Company shall 
establish  communication  channels  between  employees,  shareholders,  stakeholders,  and  independent 
directors. 
When an independent director discovers a malpractice, he/she shall adopt appropriate measures to prevent 
the  expansion  of  the  malpractice  and  report  to  relevant  competent  authorities  or  departments  when 
necessary. 
If the independent directors, president, financial, accounting, R&D, and internal audit officers, or CPAs resign 
or change, independent directors shall gain in‐depth information on the reasons. 
If  an  independent  director  neglects  his/her  duties  and  results  in  damages  to  the  Company,  he/she  is 
responsible for compensating the Company.

Article 48 Independent directors exercise their respective supervisory powers 
When independent directors exercise their respective supervisory powers, they may exchange their opinions 
through meetings based on the overall consideration of the Company and shareholders’ rights and interests 
when it is considered necessary; however, this shall not hinder the independent exercise of powers of each 
independent director.

Article 49 Liability insurance for independent directors 
The Company shall purchase liabilities insurance for independent directors during their term of office for the 
compensation  responsibility  within  the  scope  of  business  execution  according  to  the  law  to  reduce  the 
disperse the risks of material damages to the Company and shareholders due to the mistakes or negligence 
of independent directors. 
After the Company has purchased or renewed liability insurance for the independent directors, the Company 
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shall report the amount of liability insurance, coverage and premium rate to the coming board of directors’ 
meeting. 

Article 50 Independent directors participate in continuing education courses 
It  is  advisable  that  independent  directors  continue  to  participate  in  financial,  risk management,  business, 
commercial,  accounting,  or  legal,  and  other  continuing  education  programs  organized  by  institutions 
designated in the Directions for the Implementation of Continuing Education for Directors and Supervisors of 
TWSE  Listed  and  TPEx  Listed  Companies  that  cover  corporate  governance  themes  upon  being  newly 
appointed or during the term of office. 
 

Chapter 5 Respect Stakeholders’ Rights and Interests 
 

Article 51 Maintain communications with stakeholders of the Company and protect their rights and interests 
The  Company  shall  maintain  unblocked  communication  channels  with  its  banks  and  other  creditors, 
employees,  consumers,  suppliers,  communities, or other  stakeholders,  respect and protect  the  legal  rights 
and interests of these stakeholders, and set up a stakeholder section on the Company's website. 
In  the event of acquisition by  the management,  the Company shall pay attention  to  the  soundness of  the 
Company's financial structure subsequently. 
When  the  legal  rights  and  interests  of  the  stakeholders  are  harmed,  the  Company  shall  handle  them  in 
accordance with the principles of good faith. 

Article 52 The Company shall provide sufficient information to its banks and other creditors 
The Company  shall  provide  sufficient  information  to  its  banks  and other  creditors,  so  that  they  can make 
judgments  and make  decisions  based  on  the  Company's  operating  and  financial  status. When  their  legal 
rights are harmed, the Company shall respond positively by adopting a responsible attitude so that creditors 
can be compensated through appropriate methods.

Article 53 Establish communication channels with employees 
The  Company  has  established  appropriate  communication  channels  with  employees  and  encourages 
employees to communicate directly with the management and directors to appropriately reflect the opinions 
of  employees on  the Company's  operating  and  financial  status  or  important  decisions  involving  employee 
interests. 

Article 54 Social responsibility of the Company 
While maintaining normal business development and maximizing shareholders'  interests, the Company will 
focus  on  consumers’  rights  and  interests,  environmental  protection  of  communities,  public  welfare,  and 
other issues, and pay great attention to its corporate social responsibility. 

 
Chapter 6 Improve Information Transparency 

 
Article 55 Information disclosure and online filing system 

Information transparency is an important responsibility of the Company. The Company will faithfully perform
its obligations in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, and the requirements of TWSE or TPEx. 
The  Company  shall  publish  and make  an  early  official  filing  of  the  annual  financial  statements within  two
months  after  the  end of  an  accounting period,  and publish/file Q1, Q2  and Q3  financial  statements  along
with monthly business performance before the required due dates. 
The  Company  has  established  an  online  filing  operating  system  for  information  disclosure,  appointed
dedicated personnel to be responsible  for the Company’s  information collection and disclosure, and set up
the  spokesperson  system  to  ensure  the  information  that  may  affect  the  decisions  of  shareholders  and
stakeholders can be appropriately disclosed in time.

Article 56 Appointment of spokesperson 
To improve the accuracy and timeliness of the disclosure of material information, the Company is required to 
appoint personnel who comprehensively understand the finance and business of the Company, are able to 
coordinate  between  departments  to  provide  relevant  information,  and  can  solely  speak  to  the  external 
parties on behalf of the Company as the Company’s spokesperson and deputy spokespersons. 
The Company has over one deputy spokesperson, and any deputy spokesperson shall be able to speak solely 
to external parties on behalf of the spokesperson when the spokesperson is unable to implement its duties 
of speaking; however, the sequence to speak shall be confirmed to avoid confusion. 
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To implement the spokesperson system, the Company shall clearly define a unified spokesperson procedure 
and require the management and employees to keep financial and business secrets and may not distribute 
information at will. 
If  there  is  any  change  in  the  spokesperson or  deputy  spokesperson,  information disclosure  shall  be made 
immediately. 

Article 57 Establish a corporate governance website 
The  Company  shall  utilize  the  convenience  of  the  Internet  to  establish  its  website  and  set  up  relevant 
financial and business information and corporate governance information of the Company for shareholders’ 
and  stakeholders’  reference,  and  it  shall  provide  financial,  corporate  governance,  or  other  relevant 
information in English. 
There shall be personnel dedicated to the maintenance of the website in the preceding paragraph; the data 
set out shall be true and accurate and shall have real‐time updates to avoid the risk of misleading.

Article 58 Method of convening investor conferences 
If the Company convenes an investor conference, it shall make arrangements according to the requirements 
of the TWSE or TPEx and preserve the audio or video recording throughout the conference. The financial and 
business information at the investor conference shall be uploaded to MOPS according to the requirements of 
TWSE  or  TPEx  and  be  available  for  inquiries  on  the  Company’s  website  or  through  other  appropriate 
channels. 

Article 59 Disclose corporate governance information 
The Company’s website shall set up a section to disclose relevant information on corporate governance and 
make continuous updates: 
I. Board of directors: Such as the resume of board members and their powers and responsibilities, the 

diversification policy of board members and its implementation status. 
II. Functional  committees:  Such  as  the  resume  of  the  members  of  functional  committees  and  their 

powers and responsibilities. 
III. Corporate Governance‐related  regulations: Such as  the articles of  incorporation,  rules of procedures 

for board meetings, charters of functional committees, and other corporate governance regulations. 
IV. Material information on corporate governance: Such as the appointment of the corporate governance 

officer. 
 

Chapter 7 Supplementary Provisions 
 

Article 60 Keep abreast of domestic and foreign development 
The Company  shall  keep abreast of  the development of domestic  and  international  corporate governance 
systems  so  as  to  make  examinations  to  improve  the  corporate  governance  system  established  by  the 
Company for improving its corporate governance achievements.

Article 61 Implementation and amendment 
These Principles are implemented after being approved by the audit committee and the board of directors, 
and the same shall apply to any amendment.
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Edison Opto Corporation 

Articles of Incorporation(full text before amendments) 

Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article 1: The Company is organized in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act and is 

named Edison Opto Corporation. 

Article 2: The business of the Company is as follows: 

1. CC01040 Lighting Equipment Manufacturing 

2. CC01080 Electronic Parts and Components Manufacturing 

3. E601010 Electrical Appliance Construction (Grade A) 

4. E601020 Electrical Appliance Installation 

5. E603080 Traffic Signs Installation Engineering 

6. E603090 Lighting Equipment Construction 

7. E607010 Solar Thermal Energy Equipment Installation Engineering 

8. EZ06010 Traffic Marking Engineering 

9. F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials 

10. F113110 Wholesale of Batteries 

11. F213090 Retail Sale of Traffic Sign Equipment and Materials 

12. F213110 Retail Sale of Batteries 

13. F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials 

14. F401010 International Trade 

15. IG03010 Energy Technology Services 

16. ZZ99999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law 

Article  3:  The Company  shall  have  its  head office  in New Taipei  City,  Taiwan,  and may establish 

branch  companies,  representative  offices  or  liaison  offices  in  Taiwan  and  abroad  if 

necessary by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

Article 4: The total amount of the Company's  investment may not be  limited by Article 13 of the 

Company Act with respect to the limit of the proportion of investment 

The Company may endorse or guarantee external parties when necessary for its business. 

Article 4‐1: The method of announcement of the Company shall be in accordance with Article 28 

of the Company Act. 

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article  5:  The  total  capital  of  the  Company  is  set  at NT$2,000,000,000  divided  into  200,000,000 

shares of NT$10 each, of which unissued shares shall be authorized to be issued by the 

Board  of  Directors  in  installments.NT$200,000,000  of  the  aforementioned  capital  is 

【Annex 9】 
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reserved for the issuance of employee stock options or the exercise of stock options by a 

corporate  bond with warrant, with  a  total  of  20,000,000  shares  of NT$10  each,  to  be 

issued in installments as resolved by the Board of Directors.   

Article 6: The shares of the Company shall be affixed with the signatures or seals of the directors 

representing  the  Company  and  shall  be  duly  certified  or  authenticated  by  the  bank, 

which  is  competent  to  certify  shares  under  the  laws  before  issuance  thereof.  The 

Company  shall  be  exempted  from  printing  its  share  certificate  and  shall  register  the 

issued  shares  with  a  centralized  securities  depository  institution  and  follow  the 

regulations of that institution. 

Article 7: The transfer and change of the name of the owner of the shares shall be in accordance 

with Article 165 of the Company Act. 

After  the Company's public offering , the handling of the Company's stock affairs shall be in 

accordance with  the  “Regulations Governing  the Administration  of  Shareholder  Services  of 

Public Companies” promulgated by the competent authority.   

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting 

Article 8: There shall be two types of shareholders' meetings: regular meetings shall be held once a 

year,  within  six  months  after  the  end  of  each  fiscal  year,  convened  by  the  Board  of 

Directors  in  accordance  with  the  law,  and  extraordinary  meetings  shall  be  convened 

when necessary in accordance with the law.    Unless otherwise provided in the Company 

Act  and  other  relevant  laws  and  regulations,  the  shareholders'  meeting  should  be 

convened by  the Board of Directors  in  accordance with  the  law.  Shareholders  shall  be 

notified 30 days in advance of the convening of a regular shareholders’ meeting and 15 

days  in  advance  of  the  convening  of  an  extraordinary  shareholders’ meeting;  But  the 

shareholders  holding  less  than 1,000  shares may be notified by  public  announcement. 

The notice  and announcement of  the  shareholders’ meeting  should  specify  the  causes 

and subjects for convening the meeting; with the consent of the corresponding party, the 

notice of meeting may be given in an electronic form. 

Article 8‐1:  If a shareholders' meeting  is convened by  the Board of Directors,  the Chairperson of 

the board shall chair the meeting. When the Chairperson is on leave or for any reason 

unable to exercise the powers of office,  the Vice Chairperson shall act  in place of the 

Chairperson; if there is no Vice Chairperson or the Vice Chairperson also is on leave or 

for any  reason unable  to exercise  the powers of office,  the Chairperson shall appoint 

one  of  the  directors  to  act  as  chair,where  the  Chairperson  does  not  make  such  a 

designation,  the  managing  directors  or  the  directors  shall  select  from  among 

themselves  one  person  to  serve  as  chair.  If  a  shareholders'  meeting  is  convened  by 
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someone with the convening right but other than the Board of Directors, the convening 

person  shall  chair  the meeting  and  if  there  are more  than  two  such  persons,  one  of 

them shall be elected as the chair of the meeting. 

Article  8‐2:Shareholders’  meeting  of  the  Company  may  be  held  by  the  method  of  visual 

communication  or  other methods  announced  by  the  competent  authority.  In  case  a 

shareholders’ meeting  is  held  via  a  visual  communication network,  the  shareholders 

taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be deemed to have attended 

the meeting in person. 

Article 9:  If a  shareholder  is unable  to attend a  shareholders' meeting  for any  reason, he or  she 

may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting with the signature or seal of the shareholder 

in  the proxy  form  issued by  the Company stating  the scope of authority  in accordance 

with  the  "Regulations  Governing  the  Use  of  Proxies  for  Attendance  at  Shareholders’ 

Meetings  of  Public  Companies"  issued  by  the  competent  authority,  in  addition  to  the 

provisions of Articles 177, 177‐1 and 177‐2 of the Company Act and Article 25‐1 of the 

Securities and Exchange Act. 

Article 9‐1: When the Company convenes a shareholders' meeting, shareholders may exercise their 

voting rights in writing or electronically. Shareholders who exercise their voting rights in 

writing or electronically shall be deemed to be present  in person at the shareholders' 

meeting, but shall be deemed to have abstained from voting on the extempore motions 

and amendments to the original motions of the shareholders’ meeting. The declaration 

of intent is governed by Article 177‐2 of the Company Act. 

Article 10: Each shareholder of the Company shall have one voting right per share, except  in the 

case of shares without voting rights as provided in Article 179 of the Company Act. 

Article 11: Unless otherwise provided  in  the  relevant  laws and  regulations,  the  resolution of  the 

shareholders' meeting shall be made with the attendance of shareholders representing 

more  than  half  of  the  total  number  of  issued  shares  in  person  or  by  proxy, with  the 

consent of more than half of the voting rights of the shareholders present. 

Article 11‐1: Resolutions of the shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 

The minutes  of  the  shareholders' meeting  shall  be  signed  or  sealed  by  the  chair  of  the 

shareholders' meeting, and distributed to the shareholders within 20 days after the meeting. 

The foregoing meeting minutes may be prepared and distributed electronically. 

Article  11‐2:  If  the Company has  a motion  to  cancel  the public  offering  in  the  future,  it  shall  be 

proposed as a motion to be resolved at the shareholders' meeting, and this provision 

shall not be changed during the period of  listing on the Emerging Stock Exchange or 

the period of listing on the TWSE(or OTC) Market in the future.. 
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Chapter 4 Directors and Audit Committee 

Article 12: The Company shall have seven to eleven directors for a term of three years, who shall 

be  elected  by  the  shareholders' meeting  based  on  the  candidate  nomination  system 

from among persons who have good standing and shall be eligible for re‐election. The 

total number of shares of registered stock held by all directors shall not be less than a 

certain percentage of the total number of shares required by the competent authority. 

The  Company  shall  have  independent  directors  within  the  above  total  number  of 

directors. The number of independent directors shall not be less than two and not less 

than one‐fifth of the total number of directors, and shall be elected by the shareholders 

from  the  list  of  independent  director  candidates.  The  professional  qualifications, 

shareholdings, restrictions on concurrent employment, nominations and other matters 

to be  followed by  the  independent directors  shall  be  in accordance with  the  relevant 

regulations of the competent securities authorities. 

If the Company's Audit Committee is established, the Audit Committee shall consist of 

all  independent  directors,  and  the number  of  independent  directors  shall  not  be  less 

than  three, one of whom shall  be  the  convener and at  least one of whom shall  have 

accounting or financial expertise. 

The  resolution  of  the  Audit  Committee  shall  be  made  with  at  least  one‐half  of  all 

members of the Audit Committee. The first term Audit Committee shall be established 

on the date of the first election of the independent directors elected in accordance with 

the preceding Paragraph. The Audit Committee shall be responsible for carrying out the 

duties and responsibilities of the supervisors under the Company Act, the Securities and 

Exchange  Act  and  other  laws  and  regulations  from  the  date  the  Audit  Committee  is 

established. 

Article 12‐1: The Company may authorize the Board of Directors to purchase liability insurance for 

all directors during their term of office in respect of their liability under the law for the 

scope of business they perform. 

After the Company has purchased or renewed liability insurance for the directors, the 

Company shall report the amount of liability insurance, coverage and premium rate to 

the coming Board of Directors’ meeting. 

Article 12‐2: The Company adopts the single registered cumulative voting system for the election of 

directors. Each share shall have  the same number of voting  rights as  the number of 

directors  to be elected, which may be cast collectively  for a single candidate or split 

among several candidates, and the persons who receive the greater number of voting 

rights shall be elected as directors. If there is a need to amend the method, it shall be 
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listed and described in the causes and subjects of the meeting, in addition to being in 

compliance with the provisions of Article 172 of the Company Act, etc. 

Article 13: The Board of Directors shall be organized by the directors and shall elect one person as 

the Chairperson of the Board of Directors from among themselves with the presence of 

at  least  two‐thirds  of  the  directors  and  the  consent  of  a  majority  of  the  directors 

present, and may elect one person as the Vice Chairperson from among themselves in 

the same manner as provided  in the Articles of  Incorporation. The Chairperson of  the 

Board  of  Directors  shall  represent  the  Company  externally.  If  the  Chairperson  of  the 

Board of Directors is absent from office or is unable to exercise his or her duties for any 

reason, the appointment of his or her acting person shall be in accordance with Article 

208 of the Company Act. 

Article 13‐1: The directors shall attend the meetings of the Board of Directors  in person. When a 

director is unable to attend a meeting of the Board of Directors for any reason, he or 

she shall appoint another director to attend the meeting as his or her acting person, 

and shall issue a proxy form each time and state the scope of authority with respect to 

the causes and subjects of  the meeting, but each director can only be appointed by 

one  person.  In  case  a  meeting  of  the  Board  of  Directors  is  proceeded  via  a  visual 

communication  network,  then  the  directors  taking  part  in  such  a  visual  communication 

meeting shall be deemed to have attended the meeting in person. 

Article 14:  In  calling a meeting of  the board of directors  the  reasons  for  convening  the meeting 

shall be stated  in the notice of the meeting to directors  in writing, email or  fax seven 

days in advance. The Board of Directors’ meeting may be convened at any time in case 

of emergency with the notice of the meeting by writing, Email or fax. Unless otherwise 

provided in the Company Act, the Board of Directors’ meeting shall be convened by the 

Chairperson of the Board of Directors, who shall serve as the meeting chair. Except as 

otherwise provided in the Company Act and the Articles of Incorporation, a resolution 

of  the  Board  of  Directors  shall  be  made  with  the  attendance  of  a  majority  of  the 

directors and the approval of a majority of the directors present. 

Article  15:  The  remuneration  of  all  directors  is  authorized  to  be  determined  by  the  Board  of 

Directors based on  the  extent of  their  participation  in  the Company's operations  and 

the  value  of  their  contributions,  with  the  usual  standards  in  the  industry  taken  into 

account. 

Chapter 5 Managerial Officer 

Article 16: The Company may have a president and several vice presidents, whose appointment, 

dismissal and remuneration shall be in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act. 
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Chapter 6 Accounting 

Article 17: At the end of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors of the Company shall prepare the 
reports listed here and submit them to the Audit Committee for review, and the Audit 
Committee shall issue a report to the shareholders' meeting for adoption at least thirty 
days prior to the regular shareholders’ meeting.   

1. Business Report 

2. Financial Statements 

3. Earnings distribution or losses make‐up proposal 

Article 17‐1: Earnings distribution or losses make‐up may be made after the end of each quarter or 

each semi‐annual fiscal year, provided that the resolution on the earnings distribution 

or losses make‐up for the preceding three quarter or semi‐annual fiscal year shall be 

submitted  to  the  Audit  Committee  for  review  and  to  the  Board  of  Directors  for 

resolution together with the business report and financial statements. 

The Company when distributing surplus earnings in accordance with the provision of 

the preceding Paragraph,  shall estimate and reserve  the  taxes and dues  to be paid, 

the  losses  to  be  covered  and  the  legal  reserve  to  be  set  aside.  Where  such  legal 

reserve amounts to the total paid‐in capital, this provision shall not apply. 

If the Company distributes earnings in accordance with the second Paragraph of this 

Article by issuing new shares, the Company shall comply with the provisions of Article 

240  of  the  Company  Act;  if  cash  is  to  be  distributed,  the  Board  of  Directors  shall 

approve the distribution. 

For  a  company with  a  public  offering  of  shares,  the  earnings  distribution  or  losses 

make‐up  in  accordance  with  the  preceding  three  provisions  shall  be  made  in 

accordance with the financial statements audited or reviewed by CPAs. 

Article 18: If the Company has any surplus in the net profit for the year as concluded by the annual 

accounting book close, the Company shall set aside 5% to 15% of the current year’s net 

profit as profit sharing remuneration for employees, which shall be distributed in stock 

or cash by resolution of the Board of Directors, and the recipients of which include the 

employees of  the  subordinate  companies who meet  certain  criteria, where  the profit 

sharing remuneration for managerial officers shall be based on the Company's business 

strategy, profitability, their performance and contributions, and other factors, and with 

reference to the market level of salaries, with reference to the recommendation of the 

Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors; the Company may set 

aside not more than 3% of the above‐mentioned profit as profit sharing remuneration 

for directors by  resolution of  the Board of Directors. The profit  sharing  remuneration 

for employees and directors shall be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 
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However, if the Company has accumulated losses, the amount of losses make‐up shall 

be reserved in advance and then the employees and directors’ profit sharing remuneration 

shall be appropriated in accordance with the aforementioned percentages. 

Article 18‐1: If the Company has any surplus in the earnings as concluded by the annual accounting 

book close, the Company shall pay tax and make up for the accumulated losses first, 

and  then  set  aside  10%  as  legal  reserve,  but  if  the  legal  reserve  has  reached  the 

amount of the Company's paid‐in capital, no further provision shall be made, and the 

remainder  shall  be  set  aside  or  reversed  as  special  reserve  in  accordance with  the 

Securities and Exchange Act; if there is any remaining balance, the Board of Directors 

shall,  together  with  the  accumulated  undistributed  earnings,  prepare  an  earnings 

distribution proposal and submit it to the shareholders' meeting for resolution on the 

distribution of dividends to shareholders. 

The Company's dividend policy is to distribute dividends to shareholders at a rate of 

not less than 60% of the available‐for‐distribution earnings each year, with the capital, 

financial  structure,  operating  conditions,  future  development  plans,  capital 

requirements, domestic and international competition taken into account, as well as 

the  interests  of  shareholders.  If  the  accumulated  available‐for‐distribution  earnings 

are  less  than  20%  of  the  paid‐in  capital,  no  earnings  distribution  should  be made. 

Dividends may be distributed to shareholders in cash or in stock, with cash dividends 

not less than 10% of the total dividends. 

Article 18‐2:  The Company's employee'  treasury  stock,  employee  stock options,  employee profit 

sharing,  new  shares  subscribed  by  employees,  and  new  shares  with  employee 

restricted  stock  may  be  granted  to  employees  of  the  controlling  company  or 

subordinate companies who meet certain criteria. 

Article 7 Supplementary Provisions 

Article  19:  Matters  not  provided  for  in  the  Articles  of  Incorporation  shall  be  governed  by  the 

provisions of the Company Act and related laws and regulations. 

Article 20: The Articles of Incorporation were established on September 13, 2001. 

The 1st amendment was made on November 5, 2002. 

The 2nd amendment was made on September 10, 2004. 

The 3rd amendment was made on May 5, 2005. 

The 4th amendment was made on May 5, 2005. 

The 5th amendment was made on June 27, 2006. 

The 6th amendment was made on June 27, 2006. 

The 7th amendment was made on June 21, 2007. 
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The 8th amendment was made on June 16, 2008. 

The 9th amendment was made on April 27, 2010. 

The 10th amendment was made on June 19, 2012. 

The 11th amendment was made on June 13, 2013. 

The 12th amendment was made on June 15, 2016. 

The 13th amendment was made on June 22, 2017. 

The 14th amendment was made on June 18, 2019. 

The 15th amendment was made on July 15, 2021. 

The 16th amendments were made on May 30, 2023. 

 

 

Edison Opto Corporation 

Chairperson: Jason Wu 
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Edison Opto Corporation 

Procedures for Election of Directors 

 

Article  1:  Unless  otherwise  provided  by  law  or  the  Company's  Articles  of  Incorporation,  the 

election  of  directors  of  the  Company  shall  be  conducted  in  accordance  with  the 

provisions of the Procedures. 

Article  2:  The  election  of  directors  of  the  Company  shall  be  made  by  taking  into  account  the 

overall  composition  of  the  Board  of  Directors.  The  composition  of  the  Board  of 

Directors shall be made by taking into consideration diversity, and appropriate diversity 

guidelines shall be made with respect to the Company’s operation, business type and 

development needs, which shall include, but not be limited to, the following two major 

criteria: 

I. Basic criteria and values: gender, age, nationality and culture, etc. 

II. Professional  knowledge  and  skills:  Professional  background  (e.g.  law, 

accounting, industry, finance, marketing or technology), professional skills and 

industry experience, etc. 

Board members should generally possess the knowledge, skills and qualities necessary 

to  perform  their  duties,  and  the  overall  competencies  they  should  possess  are  as 

follows: 

I. The ability to make judgments about operations 

II. Accounting and financial analysis ability. 

III. Business management ability. 

IV. Crisis management ability. 

V. Industry Knowledge 

VI. An international market perspective. 

VII. Leadership 
VIII. Decision‐making ability. 

More  than half of  the directors should have neither a spouse nor  relatives within  the 

second degree of kinship in any other director. 

The Company’s Board of Directors should consider adjusting  its composition based on 

the results of the performance evaluation. 

Article 3: The qualifications for the Company’s independent directors should be in accordance with 

Articles 2, 3, and 4 of the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors 

【Annex 11】 
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and Compliance Matters for Public Companies” 

The  election  of  the  Company’s  independent  directors  should  be  in  accordance  with 

Articles  5,  6,  7,  8,  and  9  of  the  “Regulations  Governing  Appointment  of  Independent 

Directors  and  Compliance Matters  for  Public  Companies”,  and  should  be  conducted  in 

accordance with Article 24 of the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” of the 

Company. 

Article  4:  The  election  of  directors  of  the  Company  shall  be  conducted  in  accordance with  the 

procedures  of  the  candidate  nomination  system  set  forth  in  Article  192‐1  of  the 

Company Act.   

When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director for any 

reason,  the  company  shall  hold  a  director  by‐election  at  the  next  following 

shareholders' meeting. When  the  number  of  directors  falls  short  by  one‐third  of  the 

total number prescribed by the articles of incorporation, the company shall convene a 

special  shareholders' meeting within 60 days of  the occurrence of  that  fact  to hold a 

director by‐election. 

If the number of independent directors is not sufficient to meet the requirements of the 

first proviso of Article 14‐2 of  the Securities  and Exchange Act,  a by‐election  shall  be 

held at the latest shareholders' meeting; if all the independent directors are dismissed, 

an extraordinary  shareholders' meeting shall be held within 60 days  from the date of 

occurrence of the fact. 

Article 5: The Company's directors are elected by the single cumulative registered voting system 

and each share shall have the same number of voting rights as the number of directors 

to  be  elected,  which  may  be  cast  collectively  for  a  single  candidate  or  split  among 

several candidates 

Article 6: The Board of Directors should prepare election ballots corresponding to the number of 

directors to be elected, specify the number of voting rights on the ballots and distribute 

the ballots  to  the shareholders attending  the shareholders’ meeting. Attendance card 

numbers  printed  on  the  ballots  may  be  used  instead  of  recording  the  names  of 

candidates. 

Article 7: The number of directors will be as specified  in the Company's Article of  incorporation, 

with voting rights separately calculated for independent and non‐independent directors. 

Those  receiving  the  highest  numbers  of  voting  rights  will  be  elected  sequentially 

according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more persons receive the 

same  number  of  votes,  thus  exceeding  the  specified  number  of  directors,  they  shall 

draw lots to determine, with the chair drawing lots for those not in attendance. 
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Article  8:  Before  the  election  begins,  the  chair  should  appoint  a  number  of  persons  with 

shareholder  status  as  vote  monitoring  and  counting  personnel  to  perform  the 

respective duties. The ballot boxes are prepared by the Board of Directors and are open 

for inspection by the vote monitors before the voting. 

Article 9: A ballot is invalid if any of the following is true: 

I. Did not use ballots prepared by the Board of Directors. 

II. Put void ballots into the ballot box. 

III. The handwriting is blurred and unrecognizable or has been altered. 

IV. The  names  of  the  persons  to  be  elected  do  not  match  the  list  of  director 

candidates after verification. 

V. In addition to the number of voting rights allocated, other words are included. 

Article 10: After the voting is completed, the ballot box should be opened on the spot. The results 

of the voting shall be announced by the chair on the spot. 

The ballots for the election mentioned in the preceding Paragraph should be properly 

kept  for  at  least  one  year  after  being  sealed  and  signed  by  the  vote  monitoring 

personnel. However, if a lawsuit has been instituted by any shareholder in accordance 

with the provisions of Article 189 of the Company Act, the minutes of the shareholders' 

meeting  involved  shall  be  kept  by  the  Company  until  the  legal  proceedings  of  the 

foregoing lawsuit have been concluded. 

Article 11: Any matters not provided for in the Procedures shall be handled in accordance with the 

Company's  Articles  of  Incorporation,  the  Company  Act  and  relevant  laws  and 

regulations. 

Article 12: These Procedures shall be effective upon the approval of the shareholders' meeting and 

the same applies to amendments. 
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